



# State of South Dakota

SEVENTY-SEVENTH SESSION  
LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY, 2002

209H0045

HOUSE EDUCATION COMMITTEE ENGROSSED NO.

**HB 1004** - 01/29/2002

Introduced by: Representatives Wick, Bradford, Broderick, Gillespie, Holbeck, McCoy, and Teupel and Senators Moore, Ham, McIntyre, and Sutton (Dan) at the request of the Interim Teacher Credentialing and Compensation Committee

1 FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to provide for a refund of tuition for certain teachers.

2 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA:

3 Section 1. Terms used in this Act mean:

4 (1) "Eligible teacher," a teacher who teaches in a subject area of critical need as  
5 determined by the Department of Education and Cultural Affairs, and whose first year  
6 of teaching is after the 2002 school year;

7 (2) "Postsecondary tuition," the lesser of five thousand dollars or actual qualified higher  
8 education expenses as defined in subdivision 13-63-1(13) paid by the eligible teacher;

9 (3) "Secretary," the secretary of the Department of Education and Cultural Affairs.

10 Section 2. Notwithstanding provisions of § 4-7-39, at the end of each fiscal year, the  
11 secretary shall transfer twenty-five percent of any money, not to exceed one million dollars, that  
12 has been appropriated for state aid to general education or state aid to special education that has  
13 not been spent or legally obligated to the teacher tuition reimbursement fund, which is hereby  
14 created. No money may be transferred to the teacher tuition reimbursement fund if the amount



1 in the fund is two million five hundred thousand dollars or more.

2 Section 3. There is hereby created in the state treasury the South Dakota teacher tuition  
3 reimbursement fund into which shall be deposited any appropriations, private donations, grants,  
4 and other funds provided to the Department of Education and Cultural Affairs for tuition  
5 reimbursements to teachers. Any interest earned on the money in the fund shall be deposited in  
6 the fund.

7 Section 4. An eligible teacher shall receive a reimbursement equal to seventy-five percent of  
8 the teacher's first year's postsecondary tuition if the teacher has taught in South Dakota for three  
9 consecutive years following graduation from an accredited college or university.

10 Section 5. An eligible teacher shall receive a reimbursement equal to seventy-five percent of  
11 the teacher's second year's postsecondary tuition if the teacher has taught in South Dakota for  
12 five consecutive years following graduation from an accredited college or university.

13 Section 6. An eligible teacher shall receive a reimbursement equal to seventy-five percent of  
14 the teacher's third year's postsecondary tuition if the teacher has taught in South Dakota for  
15 seven consecutive years following graduation from an accredited college or university.

16 Section 7. An eligible teacher shall receive a reimbursement equal to seventy-five percent of  
17 the teacher's fourth year's postsecondary tuition if the teacher has taught in South Dakota for  
18 nine consecutive years following graduation from an accredited college or university.

19 Section 8. An eligible teacher shall receive an additional reimbursement equal to the  
20 remaining twenty-five percent of the teacher's first four year's postsecondary tuition if the teacher  
21 has taught in South Dakota for ten consecutive years following graduation from an accredited  
22 college or university.

23 Section 9. The Department of Education and Cultural Affairs shall pay eligible teachers their  
24 tuition reimbursement out of any money in the teacher tuition reimbursement fund or a

1 proportion of those funds available.

2 Section 10. The Department of Education and Cultural Affairs shall promulgate rules,

3 pursuant to chapter 1-26, to implement the provisions of this Act.

# State of South Dakota

SEVENTY-SEVENTH SESSION  
LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY, 2002

400H0223

SENATE JUDICIARY COMMITTEE ENGROSSED NO.

**HB 1015** - 01/28/2002

Introduced by: The Committee on Judiciary at the request of the Department of Social Services

1 FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to modify certain requirements for service of notice of entry  
2 in an action involving abuse or neglect.

3 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA:

4 Section 1. That § 26-8A-28 be amended to read as follows:

5 26-8A-28. Notice of entry of order of adjudication or final decree of disposition issued by  
6 the court in any action involving an abused or neglected child shall be served on the child's  
7 attorney and the child's guardian ad litem or special advocate, if any, and on all respondent  
8 parents and other respondent parties in the same manner as service of the summons in the action  
9 as provided in § 26-7A-47. The notice of entry may be served by publication in the same manner  
10 as service of the summons in the action as provided in ~~§§ 26-7A-47 and § 26-7A-48~~. If the  
11 notice of entry is served by publication, the service is completed five days after the date of  
12 publication. The time for appeal ~~from any final decree of disposition begins~~ commences on the  
13 day following the date of completed service of the notice of entry regardless of the manner in  
14 which the notice of entry is served.



# State of South Dakota

SEVENTY-SEVENTH SESSION  
LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY, 2002

814H0180

HOUSE COMMERCE COMMITTEE ENGROSSED NO.

**HB 1073** - 01/17/2002

Introduced by: Representatives Flowers, Abdallah, Brown (Jarvis), Burg, Hansen (Tom), Hargens, Holbeck, Hundstad, Jensen, Lange, Olson (Mel), and Sebert and Senators Volesky, Duxbury, Koetzle, McCracken, Moore, and Putnam

1 FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to require direct reimbursement to ambulance services  
2 under certain circumstances.

3 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA:

4 Section 1. Notwithstanding any provision of any policy of insurance subject to the general  
5 provisions of Title 58, if a policy or contract provides for reimbursement for ambulance service,  
6 the reimbursement shall be made payable directly to the ambulance service or jointly to both the  
7 insured and the ambulance service. The provisions of this section only apply to nonprofit  
8 ambulance services.



# State of South Dakota

SEVENTY-SEVENTH SESSION  
LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY, 2002

337H0178

HOUSE EDUCATION COMMITTEE ENGROSSED NO.

## HB 1085 - 01/30/2002

**This bill has been extensively amended (hoghoused) and may no longer be consistent with the original intention of the sponsor.**

Introduced by: Representatives McCaulley, Garnos, and Wick

1 FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to establish a master teacher program to award certain  
2 teachers.

3 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA:

4 Section 1. The Department of Education and Cultural Affairs shall establish a master teacher  
5 program. The South Dakota master teacher program shall reward qualified teachers in qualified  
6 school districts by means of a yearly bonus of not more than six thousand dollars per year.

7 Section 2. The Department of Education and Cultural Affairs may allocate only those funds  
8 appropriated by the Legislature for the purposes of this Act to each qualified school district  
9 according to its relative portion of the total average daily membership as defined in § 13-13-10.1.  
10 Any qualified school district may access a portion of the funds for the South Dakota master  
11 teacher program if the school district implements a plan to reward teachers who demonstrate  
12 excellence and mastery in their profession. All moneys allocated for school districts that are not  
13 qualified school districts, shall be redistributed to the qualified school districts on an average  
14 daily membership basis.



1 Section 3. If a qualified school identifies a teacher who has demonstrated excellence and  
2 mastery, the qualified school district shall provide a written recommendation and substantiation,  
3 along with the specific amount of the bonus to be paid, to the Department of Education and  
4 Cultural Affairs after March first and before April fifteenth. The qualified school district is limited  
5 to requesting bonuses in an amount not to exceed the amount allocated for such school district.

6 Section 4. For purposes of this Act, a master teacher must comply with the plan developed  
7 by the qualified school district and meet the following criteria:

- 8 (1) The teacher has taught at least three years in the qualified school district;
- 9 (2) The teacher exhibits excellence and mastery in both a subject area and teaching  
10 methods;
- 11 (3) The teacher is committed to students and their learning;
- 12 (4) The teacher is responsible for managing and monitoring student learning;
- 13 (5) The teacher thinks systematically about teaching and learns from experience;
- 14 (6) The teacher is a member of learning communities;
- 15 (7) The teacher submits a portfolio of professional work;
- 16 (8) The teacher is able to demonstrate student performance; and
- 17 (9) The teacher is endorsed by an administrator, a school board member, a parent, a  
18 colleague, or a student in the school district currently employing the teacher.

19 Section 5. For purposes of this Act, a qualified school district is one that meets the following  
20 criteria:

- 21 (1) The school district has a general fund balance of not more than thirty-five percent of  
22 total general fund expenditures for the previous school year;
- 23 (2) The school district rewards not more than twenty-five percent of its teachers, in any  
24 school year, with funds from the South Dakota master teacher program;

1       (3)    The school district awards money to master teachers without a reduction or offset in  
2            their regular salary;

3       (4)    The school district develops a plan to reward master teachers with the advice and  
4            counsel of members of the community, administration, and teachers;

5       (5)    The school district identifies a panel of individuals designated to select the master  
6            teachers. The panel shall consist of seven members including a teacher, an  
7            administrator, a school board member, a student, a former student, a parent, and a  
8            member of the business community;

9       (6)    The school district's plan is approved by the Department of Education and Cultural  
10          Affairs.

11       Section 6. The secretary of the Department of Education and Cultural Affairs shall approve  
12       vouchers and the state auditor shall draw warrants to pay expenditures authorized by this Act.

# State of South Dakota

SEVENTY-SEVENTH SESSION  
LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY, 2002

771H0419

## HOUSE TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE ENGROSSED NO. **HB 1273** - 01/30/2002

Introduced by: Representative Duniphan and Senator Ham

1 FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to revise the requirements for obtaining plates and  
2 certificates to park in any space reserved for the disabled.

3 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA:

4 Section 1. That § 32-5-76 be amended to read as follows:

5 32-5-76. An owner of a motor vehicle, who is a resident of this state, who has complied with  
6 all the laws of this state in obtaining regular number license plates for the motor vehicle, and who  
7 operates or directs the operation of the vehicle, may submit to the county treasurer an application  
8 containing a physician's certificate on a form approved by the secretary, ~~which states~~ stating that  
9 the applicant is so substantially disabled by a physical disability that it is impossible or causes  
10 substantial hardship to walk. The secretary shall promulgate a rule, pursuant to chapter 1-26,  
11 defining physical disability and disabled. The county treasurer shall procure, issue, and deliver  
12 to the applicant plates with letters, numbers, or symbols, or any combination thereof, as the  
13 secretary may prescribe. The plates shall be designed to readily apprise law enforcement officers  
14 of the fact that the motor vehicle is owned, operated, or used in transporting a substantially  
15 disabled person. No charge may be made for the issuance of the distinctive plates. The distinctive



1 plates shall be in addition to the regular number plates issued for the motor vehicle. The  
2 distinctive plates shall be displayed as set forth in § 32-5-98 and the regular number plates shall  
3 be kept on or in the motor vehicle. If the applicant is no longer disabled by a physical disability  
4 or is deceased, the distinctive plates shall be surrendered within thirty days to the county  
5 treasurer of the applicant's residence, and the treasurer shall notify the secretary who shall make  
6 the necessary changes in the registration file. The regular number plates shall remain with the  
7 motor vehicle to which ~~they~~ the plates were issued. Failure to surrender the distinctive license  
8 plates as required by this section is a Class 2 misdemeanor. It is a Class 1 misdemeanor to submit  
9 a false or fraudulent application.

10 Section 2. That § 32-5-76.1 be amended to read as follows:

11 32-5-76.1. Any person who is a resident of this state and disabled by a physical disability so  
12 that it is impossible or causes substantial hardship to walk may be issued a portable serially  
13 numbered certificate by the secretary which permits the person or the operator of a vehicle being  
14 used in transporting the person to park without time limitation pursuant to § 32-30-11.1 and to  
15 park in any space reserved for the ~~handicapped~~ disabled. The person shall submit an application  
16 containing a physician's certificate on forms approved by the secretary to prove that the person  
17 meets the criteria established by this section. If the secretary determines that the applicant meets  
18 the criteria, the secretary shall issue a portable certificate to the applicant. The secretary shall  
19 promulgate rules, pursuant to chapter 1-26, governing the application for, term of, and  
20 conditions under which such certificates may be issued. If the applicant is no longer disabled by  
21 a physical disability or is deceased, the portable certificate shall be surrendered to the county  
22 treasurer of the applicant's residence within thirty days, and the treasurer shall notify the  
23 secretary who shall make the necessary changes in the file. Failure to surrender the portable  
24 certificate as required by this section is a Class 2 misdemeanor. It is a Class 1 misdemeanor to

1 submit a false or fraudulent application.

2 Section 3. That § 32-5-76.2 be amended to read as follows:

3 32-5-76.2. Any nonprofit organization, licensed hospital, retirement home, or educational  
4 institution which has under its care or responsibility physically disabled persons, which transports  
5 physically disabled persons, and which has complied with all laws of this state in obtaining title,  
6 license plates, and registration for its motor vehicles may apply for a portable serially numbered  
7 certificate which permits the operator of a vehicle transporting the disabled person to park  
8 pursuant to § 32-30-11.1 ~~and to park only.~~ However, the vehicle may only park for the time  
9 reasonably necessary to load or unload passengers in any space reserved for the ~~handicapped~~  
10 disabled. In addition, any local government entity that owns a vehicle used to transport disabled  
11 individuals may apply for the portable certificate. The application shall be made on a form  
12 approved by the secretary. If the department determines that the applicant transports disabled  
13 persons, the secretary shall issue and deliver a portable certificate to the applicant. The secretary  
14 may promulgate rules pursuant to chapter 1-26 regarding the application for, term of, and  
15 conditions under which the certificate may be issued. If the applicant no longer transports  
16 physically disabled persons, ~~it~~ the applicant shall surrender the certificate to the department  
17 within thirty days. Failure to surrender the portable certificate as required by this section is a  
18 Class 2 misdemeanor. It is a Class 1 misdemeanor to submit a false or fraudulent application.

19 Section 4. That § 32-5-76.3 be amended to read as follows:

20 32-5-76.3. Any nursing facility licensed pursuant to the provisions of chapter 34-12 and  
21 which has complied with all laws of this state in obtaining title, license plates, and registration  
22 for its motor vehicles may apply for a set of distinctive plates as prescribed by § 32-5-76 ~~which~~  
23 ~~permits~~ permitting the operator of a vehicle transporting any disabled person to park pursuant  
24 to § 32-30-11.1. However, the vehicle may only park for the time reasonably necessary to load

1 or unload passengers in any space reserved for the disabled. The application shall be made on a  
2 form approved by the secretary. If the department determines that the applicant is licensed as a  
3 nursing facility, the secretary shall issue and deliver a set of distinctive plates to the applicant.  
4 The secretary may promulgate rules, pursuant to chapter 1-26, regarding the application for,  
5 term of, and conditions under which the distinctive plates may be issued. If the applicant no  
6 longer transports physically disabled persons, the applicant shall surrender the distinctive plates  
7 to the department within thirty days. Failure to surrender the distinctive license plates as required  
8 by this section is a Class 2 misdemeanor.

9 Section 5. That § 32-30-11 be amended to read as follows:

10 32-30-11. Any person, other than the veteran to whom it was issued, who uses a disabled  
11 veteran's license of identification issued pursuant to ~~§ 32-30-7~~ § 32-5-108 for the purpose of  
12 parking an automobile as permitted by § 32-30-8, commits a ~~petty offense~~ Class 2 misdemeanor.  
13 In addition, the court shall assess a civil penalty of not less than two hundred dollars nor more  
14 than five hundred dollars.

15 Section 6. That § 32-30-11.1 be amended to read as follows:

16 32-30-11.1. Any physically ~~handicapped~~ disabled person, who displays special license plates  
17 issued under § 32-5-76 or 32-5-108, a serially numbered certificate issued under § 32-5-76.1 or  
18 32-5-76.2, or a similar license plate or certificate issued in another state on an automobile used  
19 in transporting ~~him~~ that person, shall be entitled to park without limitation in areas where parking  
20 is normally restricted by time factors and to park in any space reserved for the ~~handicapped~~  
21 disabled. However, a municipality may, by ordinance, prohibit parking on any street or highway  
22 for the purpose of creating a fire lane, or to provide for the accommodation of heavy traffic  
23 during morning and afternoon rush hours, ~~and the~~ The privileges extended to such ~~handicapped~~  
24 disabled persons ~~shall do~~ not apply on streets or highways where and during ~~such times as any~~

1 time parking is prohibited.

2 Section 7. That § 32-30-11.2 be amended to read as follows:

3 32-30-11.2. If the police of any municipality or any other political subdivision ~~shall find~~ finds  
4 that ~~such~~ special license plates or certificates are being improperly used, ~~they~~ the police shall  
5 report such violation to the Department of ~~Commerce and Regulation~~ Revenue which ~~may~~ shall  
6 revoke the privilege of displaying license plates or certificates ~~so~~ that are improperly used.

7 Section 8. That § 32-30-11.3 be amended to read as follows:

8 32-30-11.3. Any person who is not physically ~~handicapped~~ disabled and who exercises the  
9 privileges granted a physically ~~handicapped~~ disabled person under § 32-30-11.1 commits a  
10 Class 2 misdemeanor. In addition, the court shall assess a civil penalty of not less than two  
11 hundred dollars nor more than five hundred dollars.

12 Section 9. That § 32-30-11.4 be amended to read as follows:

13 32-30-11.4. The owner of any vehicle not displaying a serially numbered certificate or special  
14 license plate parked or stopped in a parking space, or blocking a parking space, on public or  
15 private property designated as reserved for the physically ~~handicapped~~ disabled commits a Class  
16 2 misdemeanor. In addition, the court shall assess a civil penalty of not less than two hundred  
17 dollars nor more than five hundred dollars.

18 Section 10. That chapter 32-30 be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read as  
19 follows:

20 No owner of a vehicle may park, stop, or stand in an access aisle or lane immediately  
21 adjacent to reserved parking spaces or in front of a ramp or curb-cut in such a manner that  
22 blocks access to a disabled person who uses a wheelchair. A violation of this section is a Class  
23 2 misdemeanor. In addition, the court shall assess a civil penalty of not less than two hundred  
24 dollars nor more than five hundred dollars.

1 Section 11. That § 32-30-11.6 be amended to read as follows:

2 32-30-11.6. ~~Municipalities may~~ Each municipality shall by ordinance, designate special  
3 parking spaces which shall be accessible to and usable by persons with physical disabilities. The  
4 parking spaces shall be designed in accordance with the Americans With Disabilities Act as  
5 amended on January 1, 2002.

6 Section 12. That chapter 32-30 be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read as  
7 follows:

8 Each sign designating a parking space for the physically disabled shall state the penalties for  
9 illegal use of the parking space. This section only applies to a new sign or a sign that replaces an  
10 existing sign after July 1, 2002.

# State of South Dakota

SEVENTY-SEVENTH SESSION  
LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY, 2002

169H0652

HOUSE STATE AFFAIRS COMMITTEE ENGROSSED

NO. **HB 1279** - 01/30/2002

**This bill has been extensively amended (hoghoused) and may no longer be consistent with the original intention of the sponsor.**

Introduced by: Representatives Peterson (Bill), Broderick, Jaspers, Madsen, Michels, Olson (Mel), Richter, and Smidt and Senators Everist, Brown (Arnold), Daugaard, Hutmacher, McCracken, Olson (Ed), and Sutton (Dan)

1 FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to establish the South Dakota Municipal Facilities  
2 Authority, to provide for the establishment of one or more special purpose corporations by  
3 the South Dakota Municipal Facilities Authority, to establish the powers of the South Dakota  
4 Municipal Facilities Authority and each such corporation, including the power to acquire,  
5 own, lease, sublease and dispose of certain land, improvements and capital equipment  
6 comprising all or a portion of any municipal facilities, including any system or part of a  
7 system of waterworks, sewage or waste disposal, and to establish or confirm the powers of  
8 the state, the Department of Environment and Natural Resources, the Board of Water and  
9 Natural Resources, the South Dakota Conservancy District and municipalities and other  
10 public entities of the state in connection therewith.

11 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA:

12 Section 1. Terms used in this Act mean:

13 (1) "Authority," the South Dakota Municipal Facilities Authority, a body corporate and



1 politic, created under section 2 of this Act;

2 (2) "Corporation," any special purpose body corporate and politic established by the  
3 authority by resolution of the authority board as provided in section 9 of this Act;

4 (3) "Lease," when used with respect to municipal facilities, any lease, sublease, purchase  
5 agreement, lease-purchase agreement, installment purchase agreement, lease-back  
6 agreement or other contract, agreement, instrument, or arrangement pursuant to  
7 which any rights, interests or property with respect to utility property are transferred  
8 to, by or from any party to, by or from one or more parties and any related  
9 documentation, instruments or arrangements entered into or to be entered into in  
10 connection therewith or ancillary thereto including, without limitation, support and  
11 operating agreements, service agreements, indemnity agreements, participation  
12 agreements, loan agreements or payment undertaking agreements;

13 (4) "Municipal facilities," all or any part of, or an undivided or other interest in, (a) any  
14 utility property or (b) any other land, buildings, improvements or capital equipment,  
15 and any property or other rights or interests ancillary or related to (a) or (b), whether  
16 owned or used by or leased by, to or from, or to be owned, used or leased by, to or  
17 from a public entity, or useful to or by a public entity;

18 (5) "Permitted investments," any investment authorized by §§ 4-5-23 and 4-5-26 together  
19 with (a) collateralized or noncollateralized obligations of, or any other payment  
20 undertaking, deposit or other agreement of, any bank or savings institution,  
21 investment banking firm or organization, financial institution, insurance company or  
22 bank or insurance holding company (or any subsidiary or affiliate of any of the  
23 foregoing), whether organized under the laws of the United States of America, any  
24 state or territory thereof, or the laws of any foreign nation, if at the time such

1 investments are acquired, the senior debt or claims paying ability of such person or  
2 entity is rated in, or such person or entity has its obligations in respect of such  
3 investments guaranteed or supported by a person or entity the senior debt or claims  
4 paying ability of which is rated in, or whose obligations in respect of the such  
5 investments are secured by bonds, notes, or other financial obligations issued by  
6 issuers rated in, the highest four basic rating classifications by at least one standard  
7 domestic rating service, (b) any bonds, notes or other obligations of any state or  
8 territory of the United States of America or any political subdivision thereof or any  
9 agency, authority or other instrumentality of the United States of America or any  
10 state, territory or political subdivision thereof, if at the time such investments are  
11 acquired such bonds, notes or other obligations are rated in, or the obligations in  
12 respect of such investments are guaranteed or supported by a person or entity the  
13 senior debt or claims paying ability of which is rated in, the four highest basic rating  
14 classifications established by at least one standard domestic rating service or (c) any  
15 bonds, notes or other obligation of the State of South Dakota, Board of Water and  
16 Natural Resources, the South Dakota Conservancy District, the authority, any  
17 corporation formed by the authority or any public body, authority or instrumentality  
18 now or hereafter existing under the laws of the State of South Dakota or any public  
19 entity;

20 (6) "Person," any natural person, firm, partnership, limited liability company, association,  
21 corporation, nonprofit corporation, trust, grantor trust, business trust or public entity;

22 (7) "Public entity," any county, township, municipality, political or administrative  
23 subdivision of state government, subdistrict, irrigation district, water user district,  
24 watershed district, drainage district, soil conservation district, or other public body,

1 authority or instrumentality recognized by state law and shall expressly include the  
2 authority and any corporation formed pursuant to this Act;

3 (8) "State," the State of South Dakota acting by and through the Department of  
4 Environment and Natural Resources;

5 (9) "Support and operating agreement," any contract, agreement or other arrangement  
6 pursuant to which a party agrees with another party to make certain municipal  
7 facilities, or rights with respect thereto or in connection therewith, available to such  
8 other party and which agreement may provide for the imposition of fees, rates or  
9 charges for the use or operation of or receipt of services from municipal facilities;

10 (10) "Utility," any system or part of a system of waterworks, or sewage and waste disposal  
11 described in § 9-40-1; and

12 (11) "Utility property," all or any part of any land, buildings, improvements or capital  
13 equipment and any property or rights ancillary or related thereto comprising a utility,  
14 including any extensions, additions, improvements or appurtenances to any such utility  
15 or combination of systems and any interest in any of the foregoing, whether owned,  
16 leased or used by, to or from the authority, any corporation formed by the authority,  
17 the state or any other public entity, or useful to or by a public entity, including,  
18 without limitation, as to which a public entity has arranged a service agreement.

19 Section 2. There is created the South Dakota Municipal Facilities Authority, a body  
20 corporate and politic, to consist of seven members appointed by the Governor. Not more than  
21 four of said seven members of the authority shall be of the same political party. At least one of  
22 the members to be appointed by the Governor shall be or shall have been an elected municipal  
23 official and at least one of such appointed members shall be or shall have been experienced in and  
24 having a favorable reputation for skill, knowledge, and experience in the field of municipal utility

1 property. The terms for the initial appointments shall be as follows: one member four years; two  
2 members three years; two members two years; and two members one year. No person shall be  
3 appointed to the authority who is an elected official of the State of South Dakota. One of the  
4 members shall be designated by the Governor as chairman.

5 Section 3. Following the expiration of the initial appointment, all subsequent appointments  
6 to the authority shall be made for a four-year term. Each member's term of office shall expire on  
7 the appropriate third Monday in January, but he or she shall continue to hold office until his or  
8 her successor is appointed and qualified. Any vacancy in the authority shall be filled by  
9 appointment for only the balance of the unexpired term. Four members of the authority shall  
10 constitute a quorum.

11 Section 4. Each member shall, before entering upon the duties of his or her office, take and  
12 subscribe the constitutional oath of office and give bond in the penal sum of twenty-five thousand  
13 dollars conditioned upon the faithful performance of his duties. The oath and bond shall be filed  
14 in the Office of the Secretary of State.

15 Section 5. No member of such authority shall receive any compensation for services rendered  
16 under this chapter. However, members shall be reimbursed for necessary expenses incurred in  
17 connection with duties and powers prescribed by this Act.

18 Section 6. In addition to all other powers hereunder, the authority shall have the power and  
19 authority, by resolution of the authority board, to establish one or more special purpose  
20 corporations each of which shall be a body corporate and politic and instrumentality of, but  
21 separate and apart from, the State of South Dakota and the authority. Any such corporation shall  
22 be established for the express limited public purposes set forth in this Act and no part of the net  
23 earnings of any such corporation shall inure to any private individual.

24 Any such corporation shall be governed by a board of trustees consisting of the members of

1 the board of the authority together with two additional persons appointed by the Governor,  
2 which two additional members shall be independent from the government of the state. The  
3 resolution establishing the corporation shall serve as the charter of the corporation and may be  
4 amended from time to time by resolution of the board, but such resolution shall at all times  
5 provide that the power and the authority of the corporation shall be subject to the terms,  
6 conditions and limitations of this Act and any applicable covenants or agreements of the  
7 corporation in any lease, indenture or other instrument, contract or agreement then in effect. The  
8 authority may delegate to the corporation any power granted to the authority under this Act,  
9 including the power to enter into contracts regarding any matter connected with any corporate  
10 purpose of the authority or the corporation within the objects and purposes of this Act.

11 The corporation shall not have the authority to file a voluntary petition under or be or  
12 become a debtor or bankrupt under the federal bankruptcy code or any other federal or state  
13 bankruptcy, insolvency or moratorium law or statute as may, from time to time, be in effect and  
14 neither any public officer nor any organization, entity or other person shall authorize the  
15 corporation to be or become a debtor or bankrupt under the federal bankruptcy code or any  
16 other federal or state bankruptcy, insolvency or moratorium law or statute, as may, from time  
17 to time be in effect.

18 No such corporation shall not have the authority to guarantee the debts of another.

19 No such corporation shall not be required to file any reports with the state other than those  
20 specified herein.

21 Except for debts incurred directly by the corporation, no lease or other contract, agreement,  
22 instrument or obligation, issued, incurred or created by the State of South Dakota or any state  
23 agency or instrumentality (other than such corporation) may be or become a lien, charge or  
24 liability against the corporation or the property or funds of the corporation.

1 Section 7. The authority and any corporation formed by the authority may delegate by  
2 resolution any duties or obligations to the Department of Environment and Natural Resources.

3 Section 8. The purposes of the authority and any corporation formed by the authority are:

4 (1) To acquire, own, lease, sublease, sell, transfer or otherwise use, operate, obtain  
5 service from or dispose of municipal facilities to, for or on behalf of, the state, any  
6 public entity or other person;

7 (2) To make, acquire, dispose of or pledge loans in connection with any transactions  
8 involving municipal facilities and to enter into deposit, payment undertaking or similar  
9 arrangements in connection with such transactions;

10 (3) To serve the Legislature by making reports concerning the providing of such property  
11 and facilities;

12 (4) To finance or refinance municipal facilities and to enter into transactions a purpose  
13 of which is to raise capital or provide access to capital for or by public entities; and

14 (5) To invest, on its own behalf or on behalf of any party to any lease, any funds or any  
15 other amounts in permitted investments.

16 Section 9. The state, the authority and any corporation formed by the authority may enter  
17 into any conveyance, lease or contract necessary or desirable in furtherance of the purposes set  
18 forth in this Act, including, without limitation, to acquire, own, lease, sell, transfer or otherwise  
19 use, operate or obtain services from or dispose of land or municipal facilities and any other  
20 improvements made upon or under such land and capital equipment necessary or useful for the  
21 operation of the municipal facilities to be acquired by it pursuant to this Act, including, without  
22 limitation, lease, lease-purchase, and, subject to compliance with the provisions of South Dakota  
23 Constitution, Art. XIII, § 1, installment purchase contracts. Without limitation, the state, the  
24 authority or any corporation formed by the authority may include in such conveyances, leases

1 or contracts any of the following provisions:

2 (1) In lease contracts, options to purchase the property subject to the lease or the lessor's  
3 interest therein, and provisions for the deferred payment or prepayment by lessee to  
4 lessor of rent, and provisions for designating a portion of the periodic payments to be  
5 made thereunder as interest, not of all other costs and expenses of ownership,  
6 operation, maintenance, and insurance of the leased property by the authority or any  
7 such corporation as agent of the lessor; and

8 (2) In lease-purchase contracts or installment purchase contracts, provisions of the type  
9 specified in subdivision (1), and provisions for designating a portion of the periodic  
10 payments to be made thereunder as interest, for prepayment, and for acquisition of  
11 unencumbered title or fee title to the property subject to the contract.

12 No term of a lease, lease-purchase or an installment purchase contract may exceed one  
13 hundred years, and for such purpose, all renewal terms shall be included.

14 Section 10. The state, the authority and each corporation formed by the authority shall have  
15 the power and authority:

16 (1) To acquire and enter into leases of municipal facilities, support and operating  
17 agreements, deposit agreements, payment undertaking agreements, service  
18 agreements and any and all contracts, agreements or other instruments related or  
19 ancillary thereto, and to secure payment or performance of obligations in connection  
20 therewith with any property, funds, investments or rights of the state, the authority  
21 or any corporation;

22 (2) To pledge as security for any arrangement entered into with respect to municipal  
23 facilities (i) any rights under any lease, support and operating agreement, deposit  
24 agreements, payment undertaking agreements, service agreement or other contract,

1 agreement or instrument (ii) any rights with respect to investment of monies, including  
2 permitted investments and contracts related or ancillary thereto, (iii) moneys or other  
3 funds deposited with, payable to or held by or on behalf of the authority or any  
4 corporation and (iv) the proceeds of the foregoing. Any such pledge so made shall be  
5 valid and binding from the time such pledge is made. The property, interests,  
6 revenues, moneys, other funds and rights so pledged and thereafter held or received  
7 by or on behalf of the pledgor shall immediately be subject to the lien of such pledge  
8 without any physical delivery thereof or further act; and, subject only to the provisions  
9 of prior pledges or agreements of the pledgor, the lien of such pledge shall be valid  
10 and binding as against the state, the authority, any public entity and any corporation  
11 and all persons having claims of any kind in tort, contract or otherwise against the  
12 state, the authority, any public entity or any corporation irrespective of whether such  
13 persons have notice thereof. No ordinance, resolution, trust agreement or other  
14 instrument by which such pledge is created need be filed or recorded;

15 (3) To enter into one or more support and operating agreements, service agreements or  
16 other arrangements to provide additional security, property or liquidity in connection  
17 with any lease or other contract or arrangement relating to municipal facilities. Such  
18 arrangements may include, without limitation, bond insurance, letters of credit and  
19 lines of credit;

20 (4) To enter into contracts necessary or appropriate to permit it to manage payment or  
21 interest rate risk or credit risk in connection with any sale, lease or other contract,  
22 agreement, instrument or arrangement relating to municipal facilities or the investment  
23 of funds of the state, any public entity, the authority or any corporation in connection  
24 therewith. These contracts may include, but are not limited to, interest rate exchange

1 agreements; contracts providing for payment or receipt of funds based on levels of or  
2 changes in interest rates; contracts to exchange cash flows or series of payments; and  
3 contracts incorporating interest rate caps, collars, floors, or locks;

4 (5) To purchase, acquire, own, operate, contract with other parties to operate, pledge,  
5 lease, sublease, encumber, sell, mortgage or otherwise transfer any or all right, title  
6 and interest in and to municipal facilities;

7 (6) To make loans in connection with any transactions involving municipal facilities or to  
8 enter into deposit, payment undertaking or similar arrangements in connection with  
9 such transactions;

10 (7) To raise funds through the sale, lease, transfer, pledge, encumbrance, mortgage or  
11 other conveyance of the rights, interests, property or contracts described in this  
12 section.

13 Section 11. The authority and any corporation formed by the authority shall also have the  
14 power and authority:

15 (1) To serve the Legislature by making reports concerning the foregoing;

16 (2) To sue and be sued and to prosecute and defend, at law or in equity, in any court  
17 having jurisdiction of the subject matter and of the parties;

18 (3) To have and to use a corporate seal and to alter the same at pleasure;

19 (4) To maintain an office at such place or places as the authority or the board of trustees  
20 of the corporation by resolution may designate;

21 (5) To receive and invest in permitted investments any funds transferred to it by the  
22 authority, any corporation, the State of South Dakota, any public entity or any other  
23 person;

24 (6) To receive deposits or prepayments and to establish, fund and apply any reserve

1 accounts or funds for any purpose;

2 (7) To establish, assess, levy and collect, or cause to be established, assessed, levied and  
3 collected, fees, rates and charges for the use of utility property or other municipal  
4 facilities which are subject to a lease authorized hereunder or which are otherwise  
5 owned, leased or controlled by the state, corporation, the authority, any public entity  
6 or other person pursuant to a transaction authorized hereby;

7 (8) To employ attorneys, accountants, engineers, attorneys, consultants and financial  
8 experts, managers, advisors and such other employees and agents as may be necessary  
9 in its judgment and to fix their compensation;

10 (9) Make and execute contracts and all other instruments necessary or convenient for the  
11 performance of its duties and the exercise of its powers and functions under this Act;

12 (10) Contract with the South Dakota Building Authority to provide staff and support  
13 services;

14 (11) Procure insurance against any loss in connection with the property and other assets,  
15 including loans and loan notes in such amounts and from such insurers as it may deem  
16 available;

17 (12) Procure insurance, letters of credit, guarantees, or other credit enhancement  
18 arrangements from any public or private entities, including any department, agency,  
19 or instrumentality of the United States, for payment of all or any portion of any  
20 obligations of the authority or corporation, including the power to pay premiums, fees  
21 or other charges on any such insurance, letters of credit, guarantees, or credit  
22 arrangements;

23 (13) Receive and accept from any source aid or contributions of moneys, property, labor,  
24 or other things of value to be held, used, and applied to carry out the purposes of this

1 chapter subject to the conditions upon which the grants or contributions are made,  
2 including, but not limited to, gifts or grants from any department, agency, or  
3 instrumentality of the United States for any purpose consistent with the provisions of  
4 this chapter;

5 (14) Enter into agreements with any department, agency, or instrumentality of the United  
6 States, any public entity or this state and with lenders or others and enter into loan  
7 agreements, sales contracts and leases, or other financing arrangements with  
8 contracting parties for the purpose of planning, regulating and providing for the  
9 financing or refinancing of any municipal facilities;

10 (15) Enter into contracts or agreements for the operation, use, maintenance or  
11 improvement of municipal facilities;

12 (16) Cooperate with and exchange services, personnel and information with any federal,  
13 state, or local governmental agency or public entity;

14 (17) Enter into agreements for management by or on behalf of the State of South Dakota,  
15 the authority or any corporation of any municipal facilities upon such terms and  
16 conditions as may be mutually agreeable;

17 (18) Sell, exchange, donate, and convey any or all of its properties whenever the board of  
18 the authority or any corporation shall find such action to be in furtherance of the  
19 purposes for which the authority or corporation was organized;

20 (19) To establish bank accounts and securities accounts, or have such accounts established  
21 on its behalf at any trust, banking or financial institution;

22 (20) Do any act and execute any instrument which in the authority's judgment is necessary  
23 or convenient to the exercise of the powers granted by this chapter or reasonably  
24 implied from it;

1 (21) Promulgate rules pursuant to chapter 1-26 to implement the provisions of this  
2 chapter;

3 (22) To do all things necessary and convenient to carry out the purposes of this chapter.

4 To accomplish projects of the kind listed in this Act, the authority and any corporation  
5 formed by the authority may convey property, without charge, to the State of South Dakota or  
6 any public entity, if all obligations which have been secured by the property have been paid.

7 Section 12. No obligation of any corporation formed by the authority under any lease,  
8 support and operating agreement or other contract or agreement may be or become a lien, charge  
9 or liability against the State of South Dakota or the authority within the meaning of the  
10 Constitution or statutes of South Dakota. No instrument of conveyance, lease or other contract  
11 or other agreement entered into by the state, the authority or any corporation formed by the  
12 authority, relating to municipal facilities shall be a debt of the state or the authority within the  
13 meaning of the constitution or statutes of the State of South Dakota, and this Act shall not be  
14 construed as a guarantee by the state or the authority of the obligations of the corporation or any  
15 other person. Nothing in this chapter shall be construed to authorize the authority, any  
16 corporation formed by the authority, or any department, board, commission, or other agency to  
17 create an obligation of the State of South Dakota within the meaning of the constitution or  
18 statutes of South Dakota.

19 Section 13. The State of South Dakota pledges to and agrees with any party to any sale,  
20 lease, or other contract, agreement, instrument or other arrangement created under this Act that  
21 the state will not limit or alter the rights and powers vested in the authority, any corporation  
22 formed by the authority or other public entity by this Act so as to impair the terms of any such  
23 contract made by the state, the authority, any such corporation or other public entity with such  
24 party or in any way impair the rights and remedies of such party until such contract is satisfied.

1 The authority, any such corporation and any public entity is each authorized to include their  
2 pledges and agreements of the state in any such contract created under this Act.

3 Section 14. The authority and any corporation formed by the authority are hereby declared  
4 to be performing a public function on behalf of the state and to be a public instrumentality of the  
5 state. The income of the authority and any corporation, and all municipal facilities and any other  
6 property at any time owned by the authority or any corporation, and the acquisition, sale,  
7 transfer, lease or purchase of municipal facilities by or from the state, the authority or any  
8 corporation or any public entity, and the pledge of any right, title or interest in any municipal  
9 facilities by any person, shall be exempt from all taxation in the State of South Dakota. Each  
10 corporation shall be exempt from all filing, reporting and similar requirements otherwise  
11 applicable to nonprofit and other corporations.

12 Section 15. To accomplish the purposes or projects of the kind listed in this Act, the  
13 authority or any corporation may adopt all necessary bylaws, rules, and regulations for the  
14 conduct of the business and affairs of the authority, and for the management and use of municipal  
15 facilities acquired under the powers granted by this Act.

16 Section 16. Any public entity and any department, board, commission, agency, or officer of  
17 this state may sell, lease or otherwise transfer jurisdiction of or title to or any interest in any  
18 property under its or his control to the authority or any corporation formed by the authority  
19 hereunder.

20 Section 17. The state, the authority and any corporation formed by the authority may each  
21 acquire by purchase, condemnation (including the power of condemnation in accordance with  
22 chapter 21-35), lease, gift or otherwise dispose of such utility property without any further  
23 authorization from the Legislature. In addition, if the Legislature by law declares it to be in the  
24 public interest, the authority and any corporation formed by the authority may each acquire by

1 purchase, condemnation (including the power of condemnation in accordance with chapter 21-  
2 35), lease, gift or otherwise, construct, complete, remodel, maintain and equip such other or  
3 further municipal facilities subject to any limit as to appraised value or such other or further  
4 terms and conditions as shall be so specified by the Legislature in such declaration. The authority  
5 shall obtain and consider when determining the value of any municipal facilities to be leased, sold  
6 or acquired, at least one independent appraisal.

7 Section 18. Any lease authorized hereby by, to or from the state, the authority, any  
8 corporation formed by the authority or any other public entity may be:

9 (1) Upon such terms, conditions, and rentals, subject to available appropriations as in the  
10 judgment of the authority are in the public interest; or

11 (2) For a term of one or more years, with an option in the lessee to extend the term of the  
12 lease for a term of one year from the expiration of the original term of the lease and  
13 for one year from the expiration of each extended term of the lease, until the original  
14 term of the lease has been extended for a total number of years to be agreed upon by  
15 the parties at a rental which, if paid for the original term and for each of the full  
16 number of years for which the term of the lease may be extended, will pay or amortize  
17 the total cost of any financing or the appraised value of the property or such other  
18 amount as the authority or any corporation formed by the authority shall determine  
19 to be appropriate under the circumstances;

20 (3) Provide that the rental may be deposited, paid or prepaid at any time or such times as  
21 the parties to the lease agree upon, and if prepaid, any or all of such prepayment may  
22 be deposited with a lessor and invested in permitted investments or may be used to  
23 satisfy or repay any outstanding debt or obligations. The lessee may receive credits  
24 for such prepayment or deposit at such times and in such manner specified in the

1 lease;

2 (4) Provide that the lessee may, at the expiration of the original or any extended term,  
3 purchase the leased premises at a stated price, which may be the appraised value of  
4 the leased property or such other amount paid or amortized by the payment or  
5 prepayment of rents previously made by the lessee;

6 (5) Provide that in the event of the exercise of the option to purchase the leased premises  
7 or in the event the lease has been extended for the full number of years which it is  
8 agreed the same may be extended, and all rents and other amounts provided for in the  
9 lease have been made, the lessor shall convey the premises or the lessor's interest  
10 therein to the lessee with or without a covenant or warranty of title;

11 (6) Provide that the lessee shall, as additional rent for the leased premises, pay, or provide  
12 for the payment of, all taxes assessed against the leased premises if any, the cost of  
13 insuring the building erected thereon against loss or damage by casualty or otherwise  
14 in such sum as may be agreed by the parties thereto and any other costs associated  
15 with the property or any financing, and that lessee shall indemnify and hold the  
16 authority, corporation and any lenders or other parties harmless for any costs, claims,  
17 taxes or damages relating to or arising out of the lease or any financing or other  
18 contract or any other matters relating to the transactions contemplated thereby. Any  
19 lessee of municipal facilities owned or leased by or to the authority or corporation is  
20 hereby authorized to self-insure the municipal facilities on such terms or conditions  
21 approved by the authority or set forth in the lease.

22 Section 19. The authority or any corporation formed by the authority may, in the event of  
23 nonpayment of rents or other amounts reserved in a lease, maintain and operate such facilities  
24 and sites or execute leases thereof to or service contracts with others for any suitable purposes.

1 Section 20. The charges, fees, or rentals established by the authority or any corporation  
2 formed by the authority, as lessor, for the use of any municipal facilities acquired, constructed,  
3 completed, remodeled, or equipped in whole or in part with the proceeds of any financing or  
4 other transaction as provided in this Act shall be sufficient at all times to pay maintenance and  
5 operation costs for such facilities (unless under a lease maintenance and operation costs are  
6 otherwise provided for), and a proportion of the administrative expenses of the authority and any  
7 corporation as provided for by each lease, and such reserves as may be provided in the lease or  
8 any other resolution or other agreement of the authority.

9 Section 21. Any lease obligation of the state, the authority or any corporation formed by the  
10 authority pursuant to this Act shall be payable solely and only from:

- 11 (1) Revenues to be derived by the state, the authority or such corporation from the  
12 ownership, sale, lease, disposition and operation of any municipal facilities leased in  
13 connection therewith;
- 14 (2) Income to be derived from leases to or involving any public entity or other person;
- 15 (3) Any funds or permitted investments, and any earnings thereon, to the extent pledged  
16 therefor;
- 17 (4) Revenues to be derived by the authority or corporation from any public entity or from  
18 any support and operating agreement, service agreement or any other agreement with  
19 any person;
- 20 (5) Funds, if any, appropriated for such purpose by the Legislature;
- 21 (6) Revenues derived from the exercise of any power provided under this Act;
- 22 (7) Income or proceeds from any collateral pledged or provided therefor; and
- 23 (8) Revenues to be derived in connection with municipal facilities from (a) the foreclosure  
24 of any mortgages, deeds of trust, notes, debentures, bonds, and other security

1 interests held by it, or pledged and assigned by it in connection with the lease, either  
2 by action or by exercise of a power of sale, (b) the sale of the equity of redemption  
3 in said security interests in accordance with the terms of said instruments and  
4 applicable state law or (c) other actions to enforce any obligation held by it. Each such  
5 lease shall state that it does not constitute an obligation of the State of South Dakota  
6 or the authority within the meaning of any provisions of the Constitution or statutes  
7 of the State of South Dakota.

8 Section 22. Any lease or other instrument or agreement authorized hereunder shall be  
9 executed by such officers of the authority as shall be designated by the authority. Any lease or  
10 other instrument or agreement authorized hereunder bearing the signature of officers in office  
11 at the date of signing thereof shall be valid and binding for all purposes, notwithstanding that  
12 before delivery thereof any or all such persons whose signature appears thereon shall have ceased  
13 to be such officers.

14 Section 23. The provisions of this Act and of any resolution or proceeding authorizing any  
15 lease of municipal facilities shall constitute a contract with any person claiming rights under or  
16 pursuant to the lease. The provisions thereof shall be enforceable either in law or in equity, by  
17 suit, action, mandamus, or other proceeding in any court of competent jurisdiction to enforce and  
18 compel the performance of any duties required by this Act or any resolution or proceeding  
19 authorizing the lease, including the establishment of sufficient charges, fees, or rentals and the  
20 application of the income from municipal facilities under this Act.

21 Section 24. The state may acquire from any public entity or other person by purchase, lease  
22 or any other form of contract, agreement, instrument or conveyance all or any portion of  
23 municipal facilities and may own, operate, use or otherwise contract with any public entity or  
24 other person to own, operate, use or contract for use or operation of municipal facilities, and the

1 state may dispose of all or any portion of municipal facilities by sale, lease or any other form of  
2 contract, instrument or conveyance to any public entity or other person, subject only to any  
3 applicable terms and conditions set forth herein.

4 Any sale, acquisition, disposition, lease or other form, contract, instrument or conveyance  
5 by the state of municipal facilities property pursuant to this Act shall be evidenced by an  
6 instrument or agreement in writing signed on behalf of the state by the secretary of the  
7 Department of Environment and Natural Resources. The secretary of the Department of  
8 Environment and Natural Resources shall file a certified copy of any such instrument or  
9 agreement with the Legislature promptly upon execution and delivery thereof. Upon the filing  
10 of a certified copy of any such instrument or agreement by the secretary of the Department of  
11 Environment and Natural Resources, such sale, lease, acquisition, disposition or other contract  
12 shall, for all purposes, be valid, binding and enforceable in accordance with the terms thereof and  
13 all deeds, bills of sale, leases and other instruments, contracts and agreements related thereto,  
14 including any pledge, grant of security interest or other encumbrance made by the state, the  
15 corporation, the authority or any public entity are not subject to disavowal, disaffirmance,  
16 cancellation or avoidance by reason of insolvency of any party, lack of consideration or any other  
17 fact, occurrence or rule of law.

18 Section 25. The Board of Water and Natural Resources or the South Dakota Conservancy  
19 District may become a party to a lease authorized by this Act whereby the Board of Water and  
20 Natural Resources or South Dakota Conservancy District loans in an initial amount of not  
21 greater than ninety percent of the appraised value of utility property leased to, by or from the  
22 state, authority, corporation or other public entity pursuant to this Act. The Board of Water and  
23 Natural Resources or South Dakota Conservancy District may also be lender, lessor and/or  
24 lessee in connection with any transaction contemplated by this Act, provide a deposit agreement,

1 payment undertaking or similar contract to any party to a lease or lease transaction, and, in the  
2 event it is lessee, it may sublease such property.

3 Section 26. Notwithstanding any other provisions of law, all funds received by the authority  
4 and any corporation formed by the authority shall be set forth in an informational budget as  
5 described in § 4-7-7.2 and be annually reviewed by the Legislature.

6 Section 27. The authority shall be audited annually in accordance with chapter 4-11 and any  
7 such audit shall include any corporation formed by the authority.

8 Section 28. The authority shall keep an accurate record of the rental payments under each  
9 lease entered into by the authority or corporation.

10 Section 29. No member, officer, agent, or employee of the state, the authority or any  
11 corporation formed by the authority, nor any other person who executes a lease, shall be liable  
12 personally by reason of the issuance thereof.

13 Section 30. The governing body of a public entity may by ordinance or resolution exercise  
14 all the powers conferred on (a) the South Dakota Building Authority and the Governor pursuant  
15 to §§ 5-12-15, 5-12-19, and 5-12-42 to 5-12-45, inclusive, and (b) the authority or any  
16 corporation formed by the authority under this Act, with respect to the acquisition, lease,  
17 ownership, operation, sale and leaseback of utility property or other municipal facilities.

18 For the purposes of this section, (1) any sale price shall not be required to exceed the  
19 appraised value of the municipal facilities being sold or otherwise transferred, (2) no lease or  
20 other contract or agreement entered into by a public entity as provided herein shall have a term  
21 in excess of one hundred years, (3) only the net proceeds remaining with the public entity after  
22 any deposit, payment or prepayment required by any lease, contract, agreement or other  
23 arrangement entered into in connection therewith or relating to or concerning such municipal  
24 facilities are subject to § 6-13-8, (4) to the extent that a public entity sells, transfers or otherwise

1 conveys municipal facilities to the state, the authority, any corporation or other person as  
2 provided hereunder and enters into a lease, support and operating agreement or other contract,  
3 agreement or other arrangement as described herein, as modified hereby, such public entity and  
4 such sale, transfer, conveyance, lease, contract, agreement and other arrangement shall not be  
5 subject to any restriction, condition or limitation or procedural requirement prescribed by any  
6 other law or charter applicable to such public entity; and (5) at the time of lease or sale of  
7 municipal facilities by a public entity, unless the public entity retains pursuant to lease, contract  
8 or other arrangement the right to possession of such facilities, the public entity shall enter into  
9 a franchise agreement, a utility service contract, or other contract, requiring the purchaser to  
10 furnish the public entity, its residents and users located in the area now served by the facilities  
11 sold, utility service, at such rates as are approved by the public entity and on such further terms  
12 and conditions as are determined by the public entity's governing body. The public entity may  
13 enter into all other contracts considered necessary or desirable with respect to the municipal  
14 facilities being sold, including but not limited to, contracts relating to the operation, maintenance,  
15 insurance, improvements, replacement, and extension of the facilities sold or similar new facilities  
16 to be operated in conjunction therewith by the public entity or the other contracting party.

17 Section 31. All municipal facilities owned, leased, acquired, sold or operated by or for the  
18 benefit of the state, the authority, any corporation formed by the authority or any other public  
19 entity pursuant to a lease having a term (including, for such purpose, all renewal options) in  
20 excess of three years or a lease-purchase or installment purchase contract, or pursuant to an  
21 operating contract described in section 30 of this Act shall constitute a separate class of property  
22 which is exempt from all taxation.

23 Section 32. Any public entity which enters into a lease or other transaction described in this  
24 Act may also enter into one or more support and operating agreements, participation agreements,

1 indemnity agreements, payment undertaking agreements and such other contracts or  
2 arrangements related thereto or ancillary therewith with the corporation, authority, state or any  
3 other public entity or person if the governing board of such public entity determines such  
4 agreements or arrangements are reasonably necessary to induce lenders or investors to  
5 participate therein, and such agreements or arrangements may include, without limitation,  
6 indemnities for losses or claims of any nature or cause, agreements to charge, assess, levy or  
7 collect fees and charges for the use of municipal facilities, an agreement to subsidize any such  
8 fees or charges and the pledge of the full faith and credit of the public entity to pay any  
9 obligations of the public entity under or with respect to any such lease, agreement or other  
10 arrangement.

11 Section 33. Under no circumstances shall the authority, any corporation formed by the  
12 authority, the state, either in its own name or acting through the Department of Environment and  
13 Natural Resources, or any person which is a lender for or investor in, or the lessor, lessee or  
14 nominal title owner with respect to, the utility property have any liability with respect to any  
15 violation of any environmental law or regulation, including as a result of any release of any  
16 hazardous substance or any other act or omission in connection with the ownership or operation  
17 of any utility property which is the subject of any lease or other agreement or arrangement  
18 authorized by this Act unless, in the case of a lessor or lessee, such person actually operates the  
19 utility property with its own employees. Nor shall the authority, any corporation formed by the  
20 authority, the state, either in its own name or acting through the Department of Environment and  
21 Natural Resources, or any person which is a lender for or invested in, or the lessor, lessee or  
22 nominal title owner with respect to, the utility property be deemed to be a responsible party or  
23 an owner or operator of any utility property within the meaning of any environmental law or  
24 regulation, it being the intention of the Legislature that all liability for environmental laws and

1 compliance therewith and with respect to and in connection with any utility property which is the  
2 subject of any lease, contract or other arrangement authorized by this Act shall be retained by  
3 the municipality, district or other local public entity whose residents and businesses receive  
4 services or other benefits from the utility property which is the subject of any such lease, contract  
5 or other arrangement.

6 Section 34. The powers conferred by this Act are in addition to all other powers conferred  
7 upon the state, the authority, any corporation and any public entity, and their exercise shall be  
8 subject only to such restrictions as may be provided by the South Dakota Constitution and are  
9 not subject to any restriction or procedural requirements related to the acquisition, leasing,  
10 financing, sale, use, operation or encumbering of municipal facilities prescribed by any other law  
11 or charged, including, without limitation, any public procurement or bidding requirements.

12 Section 35. If any clause or other portion of this Act shall be held invalid, that decision shall  
13 not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Act. It is hereby declared that all such  
14 remaining portions of this Act are severable, and that the Legislature would have enacted such  
15 remaining portions if the portions that may be so held to be invalid had not been included in this  
16 chapter.

# State of South Dakota

SEVENTY-SEVENTH SESSION  
LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY, 2002

400H0726

HOUSE JUDICIARY COMMITTEE ENGROSSED NO.

**HB 1299** - 01/30/2002

Introduced by: The Committee on Judiciary at the request of the Governor

1 FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to change the definition and venue of perjury prosecutions  
2 and to provide for the verification of certain information on certain state applications or other  
3 documents.

4 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA:

5 Section 1. That § 22-29-1 be amended to read as follows:

6 22-29-1. Any person who, having taken an oath that he or she will testify, declare, depose,  
7 or certify truly before any competent tribunal, officer, or person, in any ~~of the cases~~ state or  
8 federal proceeding or action in which such an oath may by law be administered, intentionally and  
9 contrary to ~~such the~~ the oath, states any material matter which ~~he~~ the person knows to be false, is  
10 guilty of perjury.

11 Section 2. That chapter 23A-16 be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read  
12 as follows:

13 Perjury may be prosecuted in the circuit court for either the county where the proceeding or  
14 action is venued or where the act of perjury was committed.

15 Section 3. Any person who submits any petition, application, information, or other document



1 for the purpose of obtaining benefits or any other privilege from the State of South Dakota shall  
2 verify, under oath, that such petition, application, or information is true and correct. However,  
3 it is sufficient if the claimant, in lieu of verification under oath, signs a statement printed or  
4 written thereon in the form following: "I declare and affirm under the penalties of perjury that  
5 this claim (petition, application, information) has been examined by me, and to the best of my  
6 knowledge and belief, is in all things true and correct." Any person who signs such statement as  
7 provided for in this section, knowing the same to be false or untrue, in whole or in part, shall be  
8 guilty of perjury. In addition to any penalties for perjury, administrative remedy may include loss  
9 of benefits or privileges.

# State of South Dakota

SEVENTY-SEVENTH SESSION  
LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY, 2002

395H0679

HOUSE AGRICULTURE AND NATURAL RESOURCES

COMMITTEE ENGROSSED NO. **HJR 1009** -

01/30/2002

Introduced by: Representatives Duenwald, Bartling, Broderick, Brown (Jarvis), Brown (Richard), Burg, Duniphan, Flowers, Frost, Fryslie, Garnos, Gillespie, Glenski, Hansen (Tom), Hanson (Gary), Hargens, Heineman, Holbeck, Jaspers, Jensen, Juhnke, Klaudt, Konold, Lintz, Michels, Monroe, Nachtigal, Nesselhuf, Olson (Mel), Pederson (Gordon), Peterson (Bill), Peterson (Jim), Rhoden, Richter, Sebert, Sigdestad, Smidt, Sutton (Duane), Van Gerpen, Van Norman, and Wick and Senators Symens, Albers, Apa, Bogue, Brosz, Brown (Arnold), Craddock, Daugaard, Dennert, Diedrich (Larry), Diedrich (Elmer), Drake, Duxbury, Everist, Greenfield, Hagen, Ham, Hutmacher, Koetzle, Koskan, McCracken, McIntyre, Moore, Munson, Olson (Ed), Vitter, Volesky, and Whiting

1 A JOINT RESOLUTION, Proposing and submitting to the electors at the June 2002 primary  
2 election amendments to Article XVII of the Constitution of the State of South Dakota,  
3 relating to restrictions on corporate farming.

4 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES OF THE STATE OF  
5 SOUTH DAKOTA, THE SENATE CONCURRING THEREIN:

6 Section 1. That at the June 2002 primary election held in the state, the following amendments  
7 to Article XVII of the Constitution of the State of South Dakota, as set forth in sections 2 to 6  
8 of this Joint Resolution, which are hereby agreed to, shall be submitted to the electors of the  
9 state for approval.



1 Section 2. That Article XVII, section 21 of the Constitution of the State of South Dakota,  
2 be repealed.

3 ~~—§ 21. No corporation or syndicate may acquire, or otherwise obtain an interest, whether  
4 legal, beneficial, or otherwise, in any real estate used for farming in this state, or engage in  
5 farming. The term, corporation, means any corporation organized under the laws of any state of  
6 the United States or any country. The term, syndicate, includes any limited partnership, limited  
7 liability partnership, business trust, or limited liability company organized under the laws of any  
8 state of the United States or any country. A syndicate does not include general partnerships,  
9 except general partnerships in which nonfamily farm syndicates or nonfamily farm corporations  
10 are partners. The term, farming, means the cultivation of land for the production of agricultural  
11 crops, fruit, or other horticultural products, or the ownership, keeping, or feeding of animals for  
12 the production of livestock or livestock products.~~

13 Section 3. That Article XVII, section 22 of the Constitution of the State of South Dakota,  
14 be repealed.

15 ~~—§ 22. The restrictions in § 21 of this Article do not apply to:~~

16 ~~—(1)— A family farm corporation or syndicate. A family farm corporation or syndicate is a  
17 corporation or syndicate engaged in farming or the ownership of agricultural land, in  
18 which a majority of the partnership interests, shares, stock, or other ownership  
19 interests are held by members of a family or a trust created for the benefit of a  
20 member of that family. The term, family, means natural persons related to one another  
21 within the fourth degree of kinship according to civil law, or their spouses. At least  
22 one of the family members in a family farm corporation or syndicate shall reside on  
23 or be actively engaged in the day-to-day labor and management of the farm.  
24 Day-to-day labor and management shall require both daily or routine substantial~~

1 physical exertion and administration. None of the corporation's or syndicate's partners,  
2 members, or stockholders may be nonresident aliens, or other corporations or  
3 syndicates, unless all of the stockholders, members, or partners of such entities are  
4 persons related within the fourth degree of kinship to the majority of partners,  
5 members, or stockholders in the family farm corporation or syndicate;

6 ~~(2) Agricultural land acquired or leased, or livestock kept, fed or owned, by a cooperative~~  
7 ~~organized under the laws of any state, if a majority of the shares or other interests of~~  
8 ~~ownership in the cooperative are held by members in the cooperative who are natural~~  
9 ~~persons actively engaged in the day-to-day labor and management of a farm, or family~~  
10 ~~farm corporations or syndicates, and who either acquire from the cooperative,~~  
11 ~~through purchase or otherwise, such livestock, or crops produced on such land, or~~  
12 ~~deliver to the cooperative, through sale or otherwise, crops to be used in the keeping~~  
13 ~~or feeding of such livestock;~~

14 ~~(3) Nonprofit corporations organized under state nonprofit corporation law;~~

15 ~~(4) Agricultural land, which, as of the approval date of this amendment, is being farmed,~~  
16 ~~or which is owned or leased, or in which there is a legal or beneficial interest, directly~~  
17 ~~or indirectly owned, acquired, or obtained by a corporation or syndicate, if such land~~  
18 ~~or other interest is held in continuous ownership or under continuous lease by the~~  
19 ~~same such corporation or syndicate. For the purposes of this exemption, land~~  
20 ~~purchased on a contract signed as of the approval date of this amendment is~~  
21 ~~considered as owned on that date;~~

22 ~~(5) Livestock, which as of the approval date of this amendment, is owned by a~~  
23 ~~corporation or syndicate. For the purposes of this exemption, livestock to be~~  
24 ~~produced under contract for a corporation or syndicate are considered as owned, if~~

1           ~~the contract is for the keeping or feeding of livestock and is signed as of the approval~~  
2           ~~date of this amendment, and if the contract remains in effect and is not terminated by~~  
3           ~~either party to the contract. This exemption does not extend beyond the term of any~~  
4           ~~contract signed as of the approval date of this amendment;~~

5     ~~— (6) — A farm operated for research or experimental purposes, if any commercial sales from~~  
6           ~~the farm are only incidental to the research or experimental objectives of the~~  
7           ~~corporation or syndicate;~~

8     ~~— (7) — Land leases by alfalfa processors for the production of alfalfa;~~

9     ~~— (8) — Agricultural land operated for the purpose of growing seed, nursery plants, or sod;~~

10    ~~— (9) — Mineral rights on agricultural land;~~

11    ~~— (10) — Agricultural land acquired or leased by a corporation or syndicate for immediate or~~  
12           ~~potential nonfarming purposes, for a period of five years from the date of purchase.~~  
13           ~~A corporation or syndicate may hold such agricultural land in such acreage as may be~~  
14           ~~necessary to its nonfarm business operation, but pending the development of the~~  
15           ~~agricultural land for nonfarm purposes, such land may not be used for farming except~~  
16           ~~under lease to a family farm corporation or family farm syndicate or a non syndicate~~  
17           ~~or noncorporate farm;~~

18    ~~— (11) — Agricultural lands or livestock acquired by a corporation or syndicate by process of~~  
19           ~~law in the collection of debts, or by any procedures for the enforcement of a lien,~~  
20           ~~encumbrance, or claim thereon, whether created by mortgage or otherwise. Any lands~~  
21           ~~so acquired shall be disposed of within a period of five years and may not be used for~~  
22           ~~farming before being disposed of, except under a lease to a family farm corporation~~  
23           ~~or syndicate, or a nonsyndicate or noncorporate farm. Any livestock so acquired shall~~  
24           ~~be disposed of within six months;~~

1 ~~— (12) Agricultural lands held by a state or nationally chartered bank as trustee for a person,~~  
2 ~~corporation or syndicate that is otherwise exempt from the provisions of §§ 21 to 24,~~  
3 ~~inclusive, of Article XVII;~~

4 ~~— (13) A bona fide encumbrance taken for purposes of security;~~

5 ~~— (14) Custom spraying, fertilizing, or harvesting;~~

6 ~~— (15) Livestock futures contracts, livestock purchased for slaughter within two weeks of~~  
7 ~~the purchase date, or livestock purchased and resold within two weeks.~~

8 Section 4. That Article XVII, section 23 of the Constitution of the State of South Dakota,  
9 be repealed.

10 ~~— § 23. If a family farm corporation or family farm syndicate that has qualified under all the~~  
11 ~~requirements of a family farm corporation or a family farm syndicate ceases to meet the defined~~  
12 ~~criteria, it has twenty years, if the ownership of the majority of the stock of such corporation, or~~  
13 ~~the majority of the ownership interest of such syndicate, continues to be held by persons related~~  
14 ~~to one another within the fourth degree of kinship or their spouses, and their land holdings are~~  
15 ~~not increased, to either requalify as a family farm corporation or family farm syndicate or dissolve~~  
16 ~~and return to personal ownership.~~

17 Section 5. That Article XVII, section 24 of the Constitution of the State of South Dakota,  
18 be repealed:

19 ~~— § 24. Any corporation or syndicate that owns agricultural land or engages in farming is~~  
20 ~~required to report information necessary for the enforcement of §§ 21 to 24, inclusive, of Article~~  
21 ~~XVII to the secretary of state on an annual basis, under rules promulgated by the secretary~~  
22 ~~pursuant to state law. The secretary of state shall monitor such reports and notify the attorney~~  
23 ~~general of any possible violations, and any resident of the state may also notify the attorney~~  
24 ~~general of any possible violations. If a corporation or syndicate violates any provision of §§ 21~~

1 ~~to 24, inclusive, of Article XVII, the attorney general shall commence an action in circuit court~~  
2 ~~to enjoin any pending illegal purchase of land or livestock, or to force divestiture of land or~~  
3 ~~livestock held in violation of §§ 21 to 24, inclusive, of Article XVII. The court shall order any~~  
4 ~~land held in violation of §§ 21 to 24 of Article XVII to be divested within two years and any~~  
5 ~~livestock to be divested within six months. If land so ordered by the court has not been divested~~  
6 ~~within two years, the court shall declare the land escheated to the state. If the attorney general~~  
7 ~~fails to bring an action in circuit court to enforce §§ 21 to 24, inclusive, of Article XVII, any~~  
8 ~~resident of the state has standing in circuit court to sue for enforcement.~~

9 Section 6. That Article XVII of the Constitution of the State of South Dakota be amended  
10 by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read as follows:

11 § 25. No corporation may engage in farming or acquire, or otherwise obtain an interest,  
12 whether legal, beneficial, or otherwise, in any agricultural land in this state. For purposes of this  
13 section, the term, farming, means the ownership of livestock for more than two consecutive  
14 weeks, or the cultivation of land for the production of crops or horticultural products. For  
15 purposes of this section, the term, corporation, means any legal entity that limits the liability of  
16 any investor or owner, except:

- 17 (1) An entity in which all investors are natural persons, and one of the investors is actively  
18 engaged in the day-to-day management of the farm land or farm operation;
- 19 (2) An entity in which a majority of the voting rights are owned by qualified persons who  
20 own agricultural land or an interest in a farming operation. For purposes of this  
21 subdivision, a qualified person is either a natural person or an entity that meets the  
22 requirements of subdivision (1) of this section;
- 23 (3) An entity that engages in farming primarily for scientific, medical, research, or  
24 experimental purposes;

- 1       (4)   An entity that owns only a mineral right, a right-of-way, a utility easement, a  
2           transportation easement, a water line easement, a drainage easement, a  
3           telecommunication easement, or any less than fee simple interest in land which is held  
4           primarily for a nonfarming purpose or use;
- 5       (5)   An entity that purchases any interest in agricultural land primarily for a nonfarming  
6           purpose, if the nonfarming purpose is applied to the land within five years of the date  
7           of purchase. This exemption applies if the land is used for the nonfarming purpose,  
8           and if any farming operations on such land are merely incidental to the primary use  
9           and are conducted by contract or lease to a person or entity who is not otherwise  
10          prohibited from farming or owning agricultural land in this state;
- 11      (6)   An entity that is a lender and acquires land or livestock as collateral on a debt, if the  
12          lender disposes of the land within five years and the livestock within one year of  
13          acquisition;
- 14      (7)   A trustee holding lands or livestock for the benefit of persons or entities who are not  
15          prohibited from farming or owning agricultural land in South Dakota; and
- 16      (8)   An entity or person with a vested property interest in agricultural land or farming on  
17          June 1, 2002, or who lawfully engaged in farming or owned agricultural land in this  
18          state on November 1, 1998. However, no expansion is allowed under this exemption  
19          beyond the size and extent of the farming operation on June 1, 2002.

# State of South Dakota

SEVENTY-SEVENTH SESSION  
LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY, 2002

400H0713

HOUSE STATE AFFAIRS COMMITTEE ENGROSSED

NO. **HJR 1010** - 01/30/2002

Introduced by: The Committee on State Affairs at the request of the Governor

1 A JOINT RESOLUTION, proposing and submitting to the electors at the next general election  
2 an amendment to Article IV, section 4, of the Constitution of the State of South Dakota,  
3 extending the time allowed for the Governor's review of legislation passed by the Legislature.

4 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES OF THE STATE OF  
5 SOUTH DAKOTA, THE SENATE CONCURRING THEREIN:

6 Section 1. That at the next general election held in the state, the following amendment to  
7 Article IV, section 4 of the Constitution of the State of South Dakota, as set forth in section 2  
8 of this Joint Resolution, which is hereby agreed to, shall be submitted to the electors of the state  
9 for approval.

10 Section 2. That Article IV, section 4 of the Constitution, of the State of South Dakota, be  
11 amended to read as follows:

12 § 4. Whenever the Legislature is in session, any bill presented to the Governor for signature  
13 shall become law when the Governor signs the bill or fails to veto the bill within five days, not  
14 including Saturdays, Sundays, or holidays, of presentation. A vetoed bill shall be returned by the  
15 Governor to the Legislature together with ~~his~~ the Governor's objections within five days, not



1 including Saturdays, Sundays, or holidays, of presentation if the Legislature is in session or upon  
2 the reconvening of the Legislature from a recess. Any vetoed bill shall be reconsidered by the  
3 Legislature and, if two-thirds of all members of each house shall pass the bill, it shall become law.

4 Whenever a bill has been presented to the Governor and the Legislature has adjourned sine  
5 die or recessed for more than five days within five days from presentation, the bill shall become  
6 law when the Governor signs the bill or fails to veto it within fifteen days after such adjournment  
7 or start of the recess.

8 The Governor may strike any items of any bill passed by the Legislature making  
9 appropriations. The procedure for reconsidering items struck by the Governor shall be the same  
10 as is prescribed for the passage of bills over the executive veto. All items not struck shall become  
11 law as provided herein.

12 Bills with errors in style or form may be returned to the Legislature by the Governor with  
13 specific recommendations for change. Bills returned shall be treated in the same manner as  
14 vetoed bills except that specific recommendations for change as to style or form may be  
15 approved by a majority vote of all the members of each house. If the Governor certifies that the  
16 bill conforms with ~~his~~ the Governor's specific recommendations, the bill shall become law. If the  
17 Governor fails to certify the bill, it shall be returned to the Legislature as a vetoed bill.

# State of South Dakota

SEVENTY-SEVENTH SESSION  
LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY, 2002

400H0230

## SENATE HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE ENGROSSED NO. **SB 15** - 01/16/2002

Introduced by: The Committee on Health and Human Services at the request of the  
Department of Human Services

1 FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to repeal and revise certain provisions regarding the  
2 composition of the mental health planning and coordination advisory council.

3 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA:

4 Section 1. That § 27A-3-1.2 be repealed.

5 ~~— 27A-3-1.2. The council shall consist of the following who shall be appointed by and serve~~  
6 ~~at the pleasure of the Governor:~~

7 ~~— (1) The secretary of the Department of Human Services, or his designee;~~

8 ~~— (2) The executive director of the South Dakota Advocacy Services;~~

9 ~~— (3) A director of a Department of Human Services approved community mental health~~  
10 ~~center, whose term shall expire July 1, 1992;~~

11 ~~— (4) A qualified mental health professional who provides direct services in an approved~~  
12 ~~community mental health center (not a center director), whose term shall expire~~  
13 ~~July 1, 1991;~~

14 ~~— (5) A representative of the South Dakota Council of Mental Health Centers, whose term~~



- 1           shall expire July 1, 1990;
- 2   — (6) — A representative of the South Dakota Board of Regents;
- 3   — (7) — The executive director of the South Dakota Housing Development Authority, or his
- 4           designee;
- 5   — (8) — The state court administrator, or his designee;
- 6   — (9) — A qualified mental health professional from a private, nonprofit service-providing
- 7           agency other than a community mental health center, whose term shall expire July 1,
- 8           1991;
- 9   — (10) — The administrator of the South Dakota Human Services Center or his designee;
- 10 — (11) — A representative of a statewide mental health consumer organization, whose term
- 11          shall expire July 1, 1991;
- 12 — (12) — A family representative of an adult (eighteen years or over) severely mentally ill
- 13          individual, whose term shall expire July 1, 1991;
- 14 — (13) — A family representative of an adult (eighteen years or over) severely mentally ill
- 15          individual, whose term shall expire July 1, 1991;
- 16 — (14) — A family representative of a child (under eighteen years) severely mentally ill
- 17          individual, whose term shall expire July 1, 1992;
- 18 — (15) — A primary consumer of mental health services, whose term shall expire July 1, 1990;
- 19 — (16) — A primary consumer of mental health services, whose term shall expire July 1, 1991;
- 20 — (17) — A primary consumer of mental health services, whose term shall expire July 1, 1992;
- 21 — (18) — A representative of a statewide family support and advocacy group whose term shall
- 22          expire July 1, 1990;
- 23 — (19) — A public educator in a kindergarten through twelfth grade program (not a provider
- 24          or state employee), whose term shall expire July 1, 1991;

1 ~~—(20) A representative of consumers at large (not a provider or state employee), whose term~~  
2 ~~shall expire July 1, 1992;~~

3 ~~—(21) A representative of consumers at large (not a provider or state employee), whose term~~  
4 ~~shall expire July 1, 1990;~~

5 ~~—(22) The secretary of the Department of Social Services, or his designee.~~

6 ~~—Future terms of those members with established terms shall be three years.~~

7 Section 2. That § 27A-3-1.1 be amended to read as follows:

8 27A-3-1.1. There is created the Mental Health Planning and Coordination Advisory Council  
9 which shall be appointed by and serve at the pleasure of the Governor. The council shall be  
10 assigned to the Department of Human Services. Technical assistance and staff support shall be  
11 provided to the council by the Department of Human Services. The secretary of human services  
12 shall be responsible for the coordination of activities between the advisory council and the  
13 Department of Human Services.

# State of South Dakota

SEVENTY-SEVENTH SESSION  
LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY, 2002

400H0246

## HOUSE JUDICIARY COMMITTEE ENGROSSED NO. **SB 42** - 01/28/2002

Introduced by: The Committee on Judiciary at the request of the Attorney General

1 FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to revise certain provisions regarding the registration of sex  
2 offenders.

3 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA:

4 Section 1. That § 22-22-30 be amended to read as follows:

5 22-22-30. For the purposes of §§ 22-22-31 to 22-22-39, inclusive, a sex crime is any of the  
6 following crimes regardless of the date of the commission of the offense or the date of  
7 conviction:

8 (1) Rape as set forth in § 22-22-1;

9 (2) Sexual contact with a minor under sixteen as set forth in § 22-22-7 if committed by  
10 an adult and the adult is convicted of a felony;

11 (3) Sexual contact with a person incapable of consenting as set forth in § 22-22-7.2 if  
12 committed by an adult;

13 (4) Incest as set forth in § 22-22-19.1 if committed by an adult;

14 (5) Photographing a child in an obscene act as set forth in § 22-22-23;

15 (6) Possession of child pornography as set forth in § 22-22-23.1;



- 1 (7) Sale of obscene pictures of a child as set forth in § 22-22-24;
- 2 (8) Kidnapping, as set forth in § 22-19-1, if the victim of the criminal act is a minor;
- 3 (9) Promotion of prostitution of a minor as set forth in subdivision 22-23-2(2);
- 4 (10) Criminal pedophilia as set forth in § 22-22-30.1;
- 5 (11) Felony indecent exposure as set forth in former § 22-24-1 or indecent exposure as set
- 6 forth in § 22-24-1.2;
- 7 (12) An attempt to commit any of the crimes listed in this section; ~~or~~
- 8 (13) Any crime committed in a place other than this state which would constitute a sex
- 9 crime under this section if committed in this state;
- 10 (14) Any federal crime or court martial that would constitute a sex crime under federal
- 11 law; or
- 12 (15) Any crime committed in another state if that state also requires that anyone convicted
- 13 of that crime register as a sex offender in that state.

14 Section 2. That § 22-22-31 be amended to read as follows:

15 22-22-31. Any person ~~residing in this state~~ who has been convicted whether upon a verdict

16 or plea of guilty or a plea of nolo contendere, or who has received a suspended imposition of

17 sentence which has not been discharged pursuant to § 23A-27-14 prior to July 1, 1995, for

18 commission of a sex crime, as defined in § 22-22-30, or any person who is a juvenile fifteen years

19 of age or older adjudicated of a sex crime, as defined in subdivision 22-22-30(1) or (9), or of

20 felony sexual contact, as defined in § 22-22-7.2, shall, within ten days of coming into any county

21 to reside ~~or, temporarily domicile for more than thirty days,~~ attend school, attend postsecondary

22 education classes, or work, register with the chief of police of the municipality in which the

23 person resides, domiciles, attends school, attends classes, or works, or, if no chief of police

24 exists, then with the sheriff of the county ~~in which the person resides~~. A violation of this section

1 is a Class 1 misdemeanor. However, any subsequent violation is a Class 6 felony. Any person  
2 whose sentence is discharged under § 23A-27-14 after July 1, 1995, shall forward a certified  
3 copy of such formal discharge by certified mail to the Division of Criminal Investigation and to  
4 local law enforcement where the person is then registered under this section. Upon receipt of  
5 such notice, the person shall be removed from the sex offender registry open to public inspection  
6 and shall be relieved of further registration requirements under this section.

7 Section 3. That § 22-22-31.1 be amended to read as follows:

8 22-22-31.1. The Division of Criminal Investigation shall mail a nonforwardable verification  
9 form at least once annually to the last reported address of each person registered under  
10 § 22-22-31. The person shall return the verification form to the Division of Criminal  
11 Investigation within ten days after receipt of any such form. The verification form shall be signed  
12 by the person required to register and shall state that the person still resides at the address last  
13 reported to the Division of Criminal Investigation. If the person fails to return the verification  
14 form to the Division of Criminal Investigation within ten days after receipt of the form, the  
15 person is in violation of the registration provisions of § 22-22-31 and is subject to the penalties  
16 ~~prescribed in § 22-22-31~~ this section. Nonreceipt of a registration verification does not constitute  
17 a defense to failure to comply with § ~~22-22-37~~ this section. A violation of this section is a Class  
18 1 misdemeanor. Any subsequent violation is a Class 6 felony.

19 Section 4. That § 22-22-36 be amended to read as follows:

20 22-22-36. Any person required to register pursuant to §§ 22-22-30 to 22-22-39, inclusive,  
21 who moves to a different residence address shall inform the law enforcement agency with whom  
22 the person last registered of the new address, in writing, within ten days. The law enforcement  
23 agency shall, within three days of receipt, forward the information to the Division of Criminal  
24 Investigation and to the law enforcement agency having jurisdiction of the new residence. A

1 failure to register pursuant to this section is a Class 1 misdemeanor. Any second or subsequent  
2 failure to register pursuant to this section is a Class 6 felony.

3 Section 5. That § 22-22-37 be amended to read as follows:

4 22-22-37. Any person required to register pursuant to §§ 22-22-30 to 22-22-39, inclusive,  
5 shall annually register with the local law enforcement agency having jurisdiction of the person's  
6 residence verifying the information given pursuant to § 22-22-32. A violation of this section is  
7 a Class 1 misdemeanor. Any ~~third~~ second or subsequent violation of this section is a Class 6  
8 felony.